
A G E N D A

REGULAR MEETING 

Governing Board of the 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Meeting Date and Time:  March 21, 2024, 10:00 A.M. 

Location:  Long Beach City College Liberal Arts Campus Board Room 
4901 East Carson Street, Building T1100 
Long Beach, CA 90808 

The public may attend the meeting in person 
or view the meeting online via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5622477111 
Meeting ID:   562 247 7111 

Passcode:   boardmtg 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE PUBLIC TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND PROVIDE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

In‐person comments may be provided at the meeting but will not be accepted via Zoom. Members of the public 

attending the meeting in person will be given an opportunity to address the Board on (1) any item on the agenda 

prior to the Board’s consideration of that item, including the consent and closed session agendas; and (2) subjects 

within the subject matter jurisdiction of  the Governing Board during Public Comment on Non‐Agenda  Items. 

Members of the public who wish to speak should complete a speaker card indicating the agenda item number 

on which they will comment or designate “general public comment” and return the card to the Board Secretary. 

Each speaker will be allowed to speak for up to 3 minutes per agenda item.  

Written  comments or materials may be  submitted  by emailing  publiccomment@acta.org  or  brought  to  the 

meeting. If you request to distribute documents to the Governing Board, please present the Board Secretary with 

twelve (12) copies.  All written comments or materials submitted for the meeting will be entered into the official 

meeting minutes. For comments by email, please submit written comments prior to 3:00 pm on the day before 

the scheduled meeting.  Comments submitted by email will be distributed to the Governing Board prior to the 

meeting and entered into the official meeting minutes. 

As a covered entity under Title  II of  the Americans with Disabilities Act,  the Alameda Corridor Transportation 

Authority  (ACTA) does not discriminate on  the basis of disability  and, upon  request, will provide  reasonable 

accommodation  to  ensure  equal  access  to  its programs,  services,  and  activities.    Sign  language  interpreters, 

assistive  listening devices, and  translation  services may be provided.   To ensure availability, 72‐hour advance 

notice is required.  Contact the ACTA Office at (562) 247‐7777. 

ROLL CALL 

CLOSED SESSION 

None 



  March 21, 2024 

 

  ２

OPEN SESSION 

A.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON‐AGENDA ITEMS 

B.  REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 2023 Year End & January 2024 Performance Report 

 2024 Bond Tender and Issuance 

 2024 Emergency Preparedness Exercise Report 

C.  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

 Minutes  of  the  December  14,  2023  Regular  Governing  Board  Meeting  of  the  Alameda  Corridor 

Transportation Authority 

D.  AGENDA ITEMS 

Consent Agenda (1):  

1. RECEIVE AND FILE Monthly Financial Reports as of December 31, 2023 

Regular Agenda (2‐6):  

2. INFORMATION on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (FY 2025) Preliminary Budget Schedule 

3. APPROVE Revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Investment Policy  

4. APPROVE 2024‐2025 Renewal of ACTA Insurance Coverages 

5. APPROVE First Amendment to Agreement No. C0906 with Dudek to add an additional 12 months for 

CEQA consulting services 

6. APPROVE Amendment No. 2 to Contract C0885 to extend term of RailWorks Track Services LLC 

agreement for an additional 5 years and modify certain terms and definitions in the agreement 

ADJOURNMENT 



B. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS



Item 1

Performance Report 
Year End 2023 & January 2024



POLA POLB Combined

Dec-23 %Change* Dec-23 %Change* Dec-23 %Change*

Imports 364,661 3.6% 333,329 37.9% 697,990 17.6%

Exports 121,575 26.0% 103,688 -10.4% 225,263 6.1%

Total Loaded 486,236 8.4% 437,017 22.3% 923,253 14.5%

Empty 256,283 -8.6% 272,803 46.1% 529,086 13.3%

Total 742,519 1.9% 709,820 30.5% 1,452,339 14.1%

YTD % Change* YTD % Change* YTD % Change*

Imports 4,441,330 -10.7% 3,804,357 -12.7% 8,245,687 -11.7%

Exports 1,291,997 8.8% 1,282,438 -9.4% 2,574,435 -1.1%

Total Loaded 5,733,327 -7.0% 5,086,795 -11.9% 10,820,122 -9.4%

Empty 2,896,354 -22.7% 2,931,879 -12.7% 5,828,233 -18.0%

Total 8,629,681 -12.9% 8,018,674 -12.2% 16,648,355 -12.6%

Port Container Throughput (TEUs) –  December 2023

2



POLA POLB Combined

Jan-24 % Change Jan-24 % Change Jan-24 % Change

Imports 441,763 18.7% 325,339 23.5% 767,102 20.7%

Exports 126,554 23.2% 86,525 -18.1% 213,079 2.3%

Total Loaded 568,317 19.7% 411,864 11.6% 980,181 16.2%

Empty 287,336 14.4% 262,151 28.0% 549,487 20.5%

Total 855,652 17.9% 674,015 17.5% 1,529,667 17.7%

Port Container Throughput (TEUs) –  January 2024

* Relative to same period in CY 2023 3



SP Bay Port TEUs Trends through January 2024

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

 1,800

 2,000

Jan Feb Mar Apri May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

TE
U

s

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Thousands

4



Alameda Corridor Performance
December 2023

Dec 2023 CY23 FY24

Revenue $9.3 M $99.4 M $52.8 M

Change from 2022 26.6 % 0.6 % 4.1 %

TEU’s 410,045 4,405,893 2,352,141

Change from 2022 21.5% - 6.4% - 4.5%

5



Alameda Corridor Performance
January 2024

Jan 2024 CY24 FY24

Revenue $9.5M $9.5 M $62.4 M

Change from 2023 30.3 % 30.3 % 7.4 %

TEU’s 415,754 415,754 2,767,895

Change from 2023 28.8 % 28.8 % - 0.6 %

6



Corridor Revenue Performance
CY2019 to CY2024

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

$9.0

$10.0

$11.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

M
on

th
ly

 R
ev

en
ue

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

7



ACTA Revenue & Port TEUS

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Po
rt

 T
EU

s (
M

ill
io

ns
)

AC
TA

 R
ev

en
ue

 (M
ill

io
ns

)

Revenue Port TEUs Linear (Port TEUs)

Worldwide 
Recession

ILWU-PMA 
Negotiations

Tariffs/ 
COVID 19

ILWU-PMA 
Negotiations



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Loaded Imports Loaded Exports Empties

Port Cargo Components

9



Mode Split
Ports Loaded Import Cargo

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

IPI Transload Truck

10



Port & ACTA Cargo Volumes

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

TE
U

s (
M

ill
io

ns
)

San Pedro Bay Loaded Waterborne Cargo (TEUs) ACTA Imputed (TEUs)

11



Alameda Corridor 
Transportation Authority
S u m m a r y  o f  Tra n s a c t i o n  Re s u l t s
S e n i o r  L i e n  R e v e n u e  R e f u n d i n g  B o n d s ,  
S e r i e s  2 0 2 4 A - B  

S u b o r d i n a t e  L i e n  R e v e n u e  R e f u n d i n g  B o n d s ,  
S e r i e s  2 0 2 4 C - D

M a r c h  2 0 2 4



Transaction Key Results and Findings

2

• On January 23rd, ACTA sold $216.2 million in senior and 1st subordinate, taxable and tax-exempt bonds to 
tender and defease targeted maturities for debt service relief

• A tender notice was issued on January 5th and due January 19th targeting the following Series:

• Series 1999A Tax-Exempt Capital Appreciation Bonds

• Series 1999C Taxable Capital Appreciation Bonds

• Series 2004A Tax-Exempt Capital Appreciation Bonds

• Series 2004B Taxable Capital Appreciation Bonds

• Series 2022B Taxable Current Interest Bonds

• The Series 2024ABCD Bonds restructured debt service shortfalls to now fall within the contingent port 
obligation amounts

• Additional tenders or advance refundings may be required in order to address remaining debt service shortfalls

• ACTA’s credit ratings were affirmed by all three of the major rating agencies on both the senior and subordinate 
liens

• S&P: A- (Senior Lien); BBB+ (1st Subordinate); BBB+ (2nd Subordinate)

• Moody’s: A3 (Senior Lien); Baa2 (1st Subordinate); Baa2 (2nd Subordinate)

• Fitch: A (Senior Lien); BBB+ (1st Subordinate); BBB (2nd Subordinate)



Series 2024A, B, C, & D Bonds Summary

3

Series 2024A Series 2024B Series 2024C Series 2024D

Lien Senior Senior 1st Subordinate 1st Subordinate

Interest Type
Capital Appreciation 

Bonds & Current 
Interest Bonds

Capital Appreciation 
Bonds

Capital Appreciation 
Bonds

Capital Appreciation 
Bonds

Tax Status Tax-Exempt Taxable Tax-Exempt Taxable

Syndicate

Senior Manager: J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
Co-Senior Manager: RBC Capital Markets

Co-Managers: Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC, Ramirez & Co., Inc., Siebert Williams Shank and 
Co.,LLC

Joint Dealer Manager J.P. Morgan and RBC

Reserve Fund Assured Guaranty Municipal (“AGM”) Bond Insurance Reserves



Table of Sources & Uses

4

2024A Bonds 
(Senior Tax-Exempt)

2024B Bonds 
(Senior Taxable)

2024C Bonds 
(1st Sub. Tax-Exempt)

2024D Bonds 
(1st Sub. Taxable)

Total

Sources of Funds

Par Amount 41,012,719.60 10,903,892.10 29,683,160.50 134,632,983.10 216,232,755.30
Premium 821,793.70 -   -   -   821,793.70
Bond Proceeds 41,834,513.30 10,903,892.10 29,683,160.50 134,632,983.10 217,054,549.00

2022B Accrued Interest 137,991.43 -   -   -   137,991.43
2004A DSRF Release -   -   18,372,448.00 -   18,372,448.00
ACTA Contribution -   -   21,559,813.00 -   21,559,813.00
Other Sources of Funds 137,991.43 -   39,932,261.00 -   40,070,252.43 

Total Sources of Funds $41,972,504.73 $10,903,892.10 $69,615,421.50 $134,632,983.10 $257,124,801.43 

Uses of Funds

Escrow Cash Deposit 39,641,939.53 10,198,881.70 66,929,239.80 124,643,281.60 241,413,342.63
Total Escrow Deposits 39,641,939.53 10,198,881.70 66,929,239.80 124,643,281.60 241,413,342.63

Cost of Issuance 347,410.73 92,695.18 251,384.98 1,141,341.68 1,832,832.57 
Underwriter's Discount 220,494.15 60,427.15 179,339.60 760,668.94 1,220,929.84 
Dealer Manager Fee 115,362.50 34,650.00 194,425.00 284,150.00 628,587.50 
Bond Insurance 1,483,246.94 473,622.50 1,853,250.00 6,861,110.00 10,671,229.44
Surety Policy 164,050.88 43,615.57 207,782.12 942,430.88 1,357,879.45
Total Delivery Date Expenses 2,330,565.20 705,010.40 2,686,181.70 9,989,701.50 15,711,458.80 

Total Uses of Funds $41,972,504.73 $10,903,892.10 $69,615,421.50 $134,632,983.10 $257,124,801.43 



Tender Results

5

Target Maturities Principal Amount Tendered Escrowed Bonds
Remaining Principal 

Amount

Series 1999A Tax-Exempt Capital Appreciation Bonds

2030 $27,345,000 $575,000 $0 $26,770,000

2031 $19,550,000 $14,525,000 $0 $5,025,000

2032 $28,255,000 $23,405,000 $0 $4,850,000

2033 $16,695,000 $275,000 $0 $16,420,000

Series 1999C Taxable Capital Appreciation Bonds

2030 $28,680,000 $13,720,000 $0 $14,960,000

2031 $3,445,000 $55,000 $0 $3,390,000

2032 $31,520,000 $25,000 $0 $31,495,000

2033 $59,115,000 $60,000 $0 $59,055,000

• ACTA successfully tendered 46.71% of targeted tax-exempt par

• ACTA successfully tendered 15.10% of targeted taxable par



Tender Results (continued)

6

Target Maturities Principal Amount Tendered Escrowed Bonds
Remaining Principal 

Amount

Series 2004A Tax-Exempt Capital Appreciation Bonds

2029 $57,015,000 $30,585,000 $0 $26,430,000

2030 $100,665,000 $47,185,000 $0 $53,480,000

Series 2004B Taxable Capital Appreciation Bonds

2026 $100,675,000 $3,500,000 $35,000,000 $62,175,000

2027 $100,675,000 $46,365,000 $0 $54,310,000

2028 $100,670,000 $23,425,000 $0 $77,245,000

2029 $43,660,000 $5,665,000 $0 $37,995,000

2031 $100,670,000 $13,195,000 $0 $87,475,000

2032 $100,670,000 $12,690,000 $0 $87,980,000

2033 $100,675,000 $8,820,000 $0 $91,855,000

Series 2022B Taxable Current Interest Bonds

2046 $232,250,000 $23,930,000 $0 $224,885,000



Transaction Reduced Shortfalls Between FY 2027 and FY 
2038 by 49%

7

Pre-2024 Transaction

Fiscal Year
Use Fees and 

Container Charges*
Total Net Debt 

Service
Shortfall**

2024 $86,474,794 $65,464,048 -

2025  89,384,393 65,710,995 -

2026  98,083,069 61,311,570 -

2027 107,433,403 199,088,694 ($92,946,346)

2028  115,171,590 198,685,405 (84,830,783)

2029  121,002,152 198,255,428 (78,596,583)

2030  127,127,886 197,831,366 (72,073,654)

2031  133,563,735 164,419,423 (32,253,265)

2032  140,325,399 163,991,038 (25,091,168)

2033  147,429,372 199,854,661 (53,879,328)

2034  154,892,984 190,336,320 (36,926,455)

2035  162,734,442 214,370,588 (53,148,928)

2036  170,972,873 178,317,498 (8,887,663)

2037  179,628,374 210,013,288 (31,958,812)

2038  188,722,061 229,837,478 (42,720,794)

Total (613,313,779)

Post-2024 Transaction

Fiscal Year
Use Fees and 

Container Charges*
Total Net Debt 

Service
Shortfall**

2024 $95,853,718 $65,455,200 -

2025 92,585,448 65,653,080 -

2026 101,596,972 61,253,655 -

2027 111,283,626 160,530,779 ($50,538,298)

2028 119,332,804 152,262,490 (34,246,653)

2029 125,374,028 174,772,512 (50,741,792)

2030 131,721,088 161,523,450 (31,172,536)

2031 138,389,468 121,358,035 -

2032 145,395,435 136,158,123 -

2033 152,756,079 163,676,746 (12,374,706)

2034 160,489,355 181,123,404 (22,117,169)

2035 168,614,129 214,312,672 (47,211,326)

2036 177,150,219 178,259,583 (2,652,402)

2037 186,118,449 209,955,373 (25,410,823)

2038 195,540,695 229,779,563 (35,844,244)

Total (312,309,949)

• *Base case revenues pre-transaction are reflective of the revenues in the 2024ABCD POS. Base case revenues post-transaction are reflective of the ACTA planning model distributed 3/5/2024
• **Shortfalls are inclusive of the payment of financing fees



ACTA had a highly successful transaction

8

• ACTA had strong investor demand for its offering of long-term taxable and tax-exempt, senior and 1st 
subordinate lien bonds

o Senior lien taxable bonds were nearly 12.0x oversubscribed 

o Senior lien tax-exempt bonds were over 7.5x oversubscribed 

o 1st Subordinate lien taxable bonds were over 6.0x oversubscribed 

o 1st Subordinate lien tax-exempt bonds were nearly 5.0x oversubscribed 

• ACTA was also able to structure the new bonds with redemption features, which the tendered bonds lacked

• The tender participation and defeasance made meaningful reductions in debt service shortfalls

• Additional transactions may be needed as shortfalls remain, although they are within the amounts supported by 
the Ports' contingent obligations

o ACTA must also address expense and reserve replenishment funding in years with debt service shortfalls

• The successful transaction places ACTA in an improved credit position which supports the investor interest and 
market access that may be required for future transactions



Annual Emergency Response Exercise

Conducted by ACTA 
March 3, 2024



Emergency Response Exercise

• Sunday, March 3
• Over 100 Firefighters, 

Police and Railroad 
Personnel

• Preparedness 
training for incidents 
in the trench

• New location in the 
City of Compton



Emergency Response Exercise
Agencies involved
Fire departments
• Los Angeles County
• Los Angeles City
• Compton
• Downey
• Santa Fe Springs
• LACo Urban Search/Rescue
• Union Pacific Hazmat

Police
• FBI
• Compton
• Vernon
• LA Co Sheriffs 
• LA City
• Union Pacific Railroad
• BNSF Railway
• POLA Emergency Management Unit



Emergency Response Exercise
• Rescue Scenario

Paramedic and fire crews extract an injured 
person out of the trench using a crane



Emergency Response Exercise
• Fire Scenario 

Cutting access ways and fire fighting in container



Emergency Response Exercise
• Hazmat Scenario 

Leaking tank car



Emergency Response Exercise

Media coverage
• NBC 4
• KMEX –Univision 34
• KVEA – Telemundo 52
• Spectrum News 1
• LB Press-Telegram
• Daily Breeze

Press-Telegram / 
Daily Breeze Press-Telegram (online)

KNBC-TV Channel 4

KVEA-Telemundo



C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES



 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY GOVERNING 

BOARD HELD AT LONG BEACH CITY COLLEGE LIBERAL ARTS CAMPUS BOARD ROOM, 4901 E. CARSON STREET, 

BUILDING T1100, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA 90808 ON DECEMBER 14, 2023 AT 10:00 A.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Members present: 

Michael Cano, Los Angeles County Metro 

Frank Colonna, Port of Long Beach 

Mario Cordero, Port of Long Beach 

Edward Renwick, Port of Los Angeles  

Suely Saro, City of Long Beach 

Alternate members present: 

Michael DiBernardo, Port of Los Angeles  

Members absent: 

Tim McOsker, City of Los Angeles 

Also present: 

Michael Leue, ACTA, Chief Executive Officer  

Kevin Scott, ACTA, Chief Financial Officer  

Heather McCloskey, ACTA, Co‐General Counsel  

Thomas Oh, ACTA, Co‐General Counsel  

Maria Melendres, ACTA, Governing Board Secretary 

 

CHAIR SARO PRESIDED AS CHAIR.  

The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m.   

CLOSED SESSION 

At 10:03 a.m., Chair Saro recessed the Governing Board meeting to consider the appointment and 

employment of ACTA’s Chief Operating Officer (Government Code Section 54957).  

At 10:20 a.m., the meeting was again called to order.  Ms. Heather McCloskey, ACTA Co‐General Counsel, 

announced that the Governing Board addressed the items on the Governing Board agenda on page 1 and 

there were no reportable items.  

OPEN SESSION  

A.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON‐AGENDA ITEMS  

  There were no requests by the public to address the Governing Board. 

 



 

2 

B.  REPORTS AND PRESENTATION  

 OCTOBER 2023 CORRIDOR PERFORMANCE  

Michael Leue presented the Corridor performance statistics through October 2023.   

 AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT  

Audit Committee Chair Renwick provided a report of the Audit Committee meeting held on December 

14, 2023.  

 CARLO LUZZI RECOGNITION  

Carlo Luzzi was recognized for his service to ACTA upon his retirement from the Port of Long Beach.  

C.   MINUTES   

ACTA GOVERNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 – APPROVED. 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 14, 2023, of the Governing Board of the Alameda Corridor 

Transportation Authority, were presented to the Governing Board.   

Board Member Cano motioned, seconded by Board Member DiBernardo that the minutes of the 

September 14, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority be approved as 

submitted.  Carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker  

D.   AGENDA ITEMS 

Consent Agenda 

1. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 – RECEIVED AND FILED.  

Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated December 14, 2023, recommending 

that the monthly financial reports as of September 30, 2023, be received and filed, was presented to the 

Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on the Consent Agenda. Board Member Cano motioned, seconded by 

Board Member Colonna that the Monthly Financial Reports as of September 30, 2023, be received and 

filed. Carried by the following vote:  

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker  

 

Regular Agenda 

2.  2024 REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS & TENDER OF CERTAIN PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BONDS – APPROVED. 

  Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated December 14, 2023, recommending 

the adoption of Resolution JPA 23‐8 approving and authorizing the issuance of 2024 Revenue Refunding 

Bonds and a Tender of Certain Previously Issued Bonds, was presented to the Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 2.  



 

3 

Board Member Renwick made a motion to approve Item No. 2, seconded by Board Member Cano.  

Carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker  

3.  ALAMEDA CORRIDOR ENGINEERING TEAM FY23 – FY23 CLOSEOUT CHANGE ORDERS 81 & 62 – 

AGREEMENT NO. 27 – APPROVED. 

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending the authorization of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer to issue Change 

Orders to Contract Work Orders with the Alameda Corridor Engineering Team for FY23 as follows: 1) 

Change Order No. 81 for ACTA Support Work in the decreased amount of $21,231; and 2) Change Order 

No. 62 for SR47 Project in the decreased amount of $120,677, decreasing the total contract value for 

FY23 in the amount of $141,908, was presented to the Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 3. 

Board Member DiBernardo motioned, seconded by Board Member Renwick that Item No. 3 be 

approved as recommended. Carried by the following vote:   

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker  

4.   CITY OF LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT – PIER B ON‐DOCK RAIL SUPPORT FACILITY PROJECT– FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. C0905 – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending the authorization of the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to execute the First 

Amendment to Reimbursement Agreement No. C0905 with the City of Long Beach Harbor Department 

(POLB) to cover ACTA expenditures for legal, environmental review, engineering and flagging services 

associated with POLB’s Pier B On‐Dock Rail Support Facility per the Agreement, was presented to the 

Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 4.  

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member Cordero that Item No. 4 be approved as 

recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

5.   UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD – DOLORES YARD CROSSOVER PROJECT – SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT NO. M0899 – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending the authorization of the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to execute the Second 

Amendment to Reimbursement Agreement No. M0899 with the Union Pacific Railroad Co. (UPRR) for 

the UPRR’s Dolores Yard Crossover Project per the project Memorandum of Agreement increasing the 



 

4 

costs associated with construction on ACTA right‐of‐way, design review and administration by $493,000 

to a total amount of $2,150,000 to be reimbursed by UPRR, was presented to the Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 5.  

Board Member DiBernardo motioned, seconded by Board Member Cordero that Item No. 5 be approved 

as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

6.   PACIFIC RAILWAY ENTERPRISE, INC. – SIGNAL DESIGN SERVICES – SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT NO. C0889 – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending the authorization of the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to execute the Second 

Amendment to Agreement No. C0889 with Pacific Railway Enterprise, Inc. for additional compensation 

in the amount of $630,200 for the continuation of signal design services, was presented to the 

Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 6.  

Board Member Cordero motioned, seconded by Board Member Colonna that Item No. 6 be approved as 

recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

7.   RESOLUTION NO. JPA 23‐5 – 2024 GOVERNING BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending that the Board approve Resolution No. JPA 23‐5 setting the date and time for regular 

meetings of the ACTA Governing Board in 2024, was presented to the Governing Board. 

No public comment was received on Item No. 7.  

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member DiBernardo that Item No. 7 be 

approved as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

8.   RESOLUTION NO. JPA 23‐6 – ACTA OFFICER POSITIONS – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending that the Board approve Resolution No. JPA 23‐6 clarifying and affirming the current 

ACTA Officers as required under the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated 

December 18, 1996 (as amended, the “Joint Powers Agreement”), and approving the added position of 

Chief Operating Officer, was presented to the Governing Board. 



 

5 

No public comment was received on Item No. 8.  

Board Member Renwick motioned, seconded by Chair Saro that Item No. 8 be approved as 

recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

9.   RESOLUTION NO. JPA 23‐7 – CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER APPOINTMENT – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending that the Board approve Resolution No. JPA 23‐7 for the appointment of Graham Christie 

as Chief Operating Officer of the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, effective December 18, 

2023, and approve the COO’s annual salary of $250,000 and all other employee benefits offered to 

salaried Fair Labor Standards Act exempt employees with an adjustment to the Chief Operating Officer’s 

biweekly vacation accrual rate at 6.15 hours, was presented to the Governing Board. 

No public comment was received on Item No. 9.  

Board Member Renwick motioned, seconded by Board Member DiBernardo that Item No. 9 be 

approved as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

10.  MOU AMONGST POLA, METRO, UPRR, POLB & ACTA – WEST SANTA ANA BRANCH TRANSIT CORRIDOR 

PROJECT –APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated December 14, 2023, 

recommending the approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the proposed West Santa 

Ana Branch Transit Corridor Project amongst the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (POLA), the Los 

Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro), Union Pacific Railroad Company (UPRR), 

and the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA), regarding Metro’s proposed West Santa Ana 

Branch Transit Corridor Project, was presented to the Governing Board. 

No public comment was received on Item No. 10.  

Board Member Cano motioned, seconded by Board Member DiBernardo that Item No. 10 be approved 

as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, DiBernardo, Renwick, Saro  

NOES: None 

ABSENT: McOsker 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 10:58 a.m., the meeting was adjourned sine die. 



D. AGENDA ITEMS



ITEM #1 

M E M O
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  March 21, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  RECEIVE AND FILE Monthly Financial Reports as of December 31, 2023 

Recommendation:  

Receive and file the Monthly Financial Reports as of December 2023.  

Discussion: 

The financial package includes the following: 

 Executive Summary – Monthly key financial activity (See Transmittal 1).

Performance Comparisons – Current Month (December) and year‐to‐date (both by fiscal year and calendar
year) of Revenue (corridor use fee) and corresponding TEU  information; Change  is compared to prior year
actuals by month, fiscal year and calendar year.

Use Fees and Container Charges – Use fee and container charge information is provided in a bar chart by fiscal
year.   The current year shows the actuals to date overlain on the approved fiscal year budget, and with a
notation of the latest forecast for fiscal year revenue.

 Monthly Financial Statements (See Transmittal 2).

Statements of Net Position ‐ Unaudited statement of ACTA’s assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2023.
The audited June 30, 2023 financial information is also included for comparative purposes to the beginning of
the fiscal year.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes  in Net Position – Fiscal Year 2024 unaudited statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position through December 31, 2023.  Also included is the statement
as of December 2022 which has been included for comparative purposes for six months of information.

Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses – Operating Budget by Expense Type  ‐ The  fiscal year‐to‐date
budget is compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of December 31, 2023.

Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses – Operating Budget by Funds ‐ The fiscal year‐to‐date budget is
compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of December 31, 2023.



  March 21, 2024 
    ITEM #1 

  ２

Cash and Investment Summary – Cash and investment balances and the corresponding investment schedule 
are  being  presented  as  of  December  31,  2023.    The  cash  and  investment  balances  are  segregated  by 
institution, account number reference, and account description.  Balances are presented in book and market 
value.   Also  included are the grant funds received for the SR‐47 project during the current fiscal year. The 
investment schedule summarizes the composition of the agency’s investment portfolio and how the portfolio 
complies with the Board approved Investment Policy.   

Cash Flow – Cash flow for the month of December 2023 is presented. It is presented in both a summary format 
and a detailed format. A fiscal year‐to‐date cash flow showing all activity through December 31, 2023 is also 
presented in both a summary format and a detailed format. The dollar amounts represent the book values for 
each account.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 ‐ Executive Summary – Key financial activity 

Transmittal 2 ‐ Monthly Financial Statements as of December 31, 2023   



Key Financial Activity

December ‘23 vs. ‘22

Transmittal 1



Corridor Performance
December ’23 vs. ’22

Railroad Self-Assessment Revenue

’23 ’22 Change

Dec Revenue $9.3 M $7.3 M 26.6 %

Calendar Year to Date (Jan-Dec) * $99.4 M $98.8 M 0.6 %

Fiscal Year to Date (July-Dec) * $52.8 M $50.7 M 4.1 %

* Note:  Does not include reconciliations / adjustments for fiscal year-end.

2



Operations – On Corridor

’23 ’22 Change

TEU’s * 398,178 (6,979) 329,514 (5,776) 20.8 %

Calendar Year to Date 4,275,561 (6,365) 4,546,692 (6,768) - 6.0 %

Fiscal Year to Date 2,281,972 (6,739) 2,382,056 (7,034) - 4.2 %

Operations – Around Corridor (Container Charges)

’23 ’22 Change

TEU’s * 11,867 (208) 8,065 (141) 47.2 %

Calendar Year to Date 130,332 (194) 157,798 (235) - 17.4 %

Fiscal Year to Date 70,169 (207) 79,696 (235) - 12.0 %

Operations – Combined

’23 ’22 Change

TEU’s * 410,045 (7,187) 337,579 (5,917) 21.5 %

Calendar Year to Date 4,405,893 (6,559) 4,704,491 (7,003) - 6.4 %

Fiscal Year to Date 2,352,141 (6,946) 2,461,751 (7,270) - 4.5 %

3
Note:  Numbers in (    ) are the Average Daily Containers, Daily TEU’s ÷ 1.84 = Containers
* Containers trucked to off-dock intermodal yards that are charged ACTA fee 

Corridor Volumes
December ’23 vs. ’22

TEUs (Daily Containers)



2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
39 40 44 47 55 49 44 36 39 42 42

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
45 47 38 34 37 38 33 28 30 28 27

N
um

be
r o

f T
ra

in
s

Alameda Corridor Train Counts

* Corridor Capacity 150 Trains per Day

Average Daily Trains*:

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

 20,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023*

4



87.2

95.2 94.0
85.3 80.5

93.2 97.3 99.4
109.0 105.5 103.6 102.8

112.9 112.5
102.1

117.4

94.6 97.3

57.8

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

M
ill

io
ns

Fiscal Year

Use Fees & Container Charges
as of December 31, 2023

5Budget Actual


Chart1

		FY07

		FY08

		FY09

		FY10

		FY11

		FY12

		FY13

		FY14

		FY15

		FY16

		FY17

		FY18

		FY19

		FY20

		FY21

		FY22

		FY23

		FY24



Fiscal Year

Millions

95.2

94

85.3

80.5

93.2

97.3

99.4

109

105.5

103.6

102.8

112.9

112.5

102.1

117.4

94.6

97.3

57.8



Sheet1

				FY03		FY04		FY05		FY06		FY07		FY08		FY09		FY10		FY11		FY12		FY13		FY14		FY15		FY16		FY17		FY18		FY19		FY20		FY21		FY22		FY23		FY24

		Millions		54.7		62.0		65.5		80.5		95.2		94.0		85.3		80.5		93.2		97.3		99.4		109.0		105.5		103.6		102.8		112.9		112.5		102.1		117.4		94.6		97.3		57.8







1

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2023 & June 30, 2023

Transmittal 2



2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, &  
Changes in Net Position

For six months ended December 31, 2023 & December 31, 2022



3

Comparison of Budget By Expense Type
as of December 31, 2023



4

Comparison of Budget By Funds
as of December 31, 2023



5

Cash & Investment Summary
as of December 31, 2023



6

Cash & Investment Summary (cont’d)
as of December 31, 2023



7

Cash Flow
as of December 31, 2023



8

Cash Flow – YTD
as of December 31, 2023



9

Cash Flow – YTD
as of December 31, 2023



  ITEM #2 

 

 M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To: Governing Board 

Meeting Date: March 21, 2024 

From: Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: INFORMATION on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (FY 2025) Preliminary Budget Schedule 

Information:  

To ensure the timely preparation of the annual budget, ACTA staff has developed a preliminary budget schedule 
as follows.  It includes the key budget preparation, review, and approval dates.   

Discussion: 

• March 7, 2024 – Draft operating budget completed by ACTA staff. 

• March 14, 2024 – Draft budget circulated in-house for review by ACTA management. 

• March 21, 2024 – Draft budget emailed to Ports’ staff for review/comment. 

• April 11, 2024 – Draft budget included in Governing Board package. 

• April 18, 2024 – Draft budget presented as information to the Governing Board at regularly scheduled 
Governing Board meeting. 

• May 30, 2024 – Draft budget included in the Governing Board package. 

• June 20, 2024 – Final FY 2025 Budget presented to Governing Board for adoption. 

Should the April Governing Board meeting be cancelled, the draft budget will be presented at the May Governing 
Board meeting. Should the June Governing Board meeting be cancelled, a special meeting will be required prior 
to July 1, 2024, to adopt the budget. 

Co-General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co-General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 



  ITEM #3 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  March 21, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  Approve Revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Investment Policy 

Recommendation:  

ACTA Staff recommends that the Governing Board approve the revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Investment Policy.   

Discussion: 

ACTA’s Investment Policy (“Investment Policy”) provides the basis for ACTA to invest of all of its funds, including 

approximately $10 million invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and SR‐47 funds. A separate but 

parallel  investment  policy,  included  in  the  Master  Trust  Indenture  under  Permitted  Investments,  provides 

authority for investment of more than $130 million in bond related funds. 

Shortly after the end of each month, staff provides the Governing Board a report showing ACTA’s investments in 

bond related funds and non‐bond funds as invested by ACTA’s Investment Manager, Chandler Asset Management 

(CAM).  The  Investment  Policy  requires  that  the Governing Board  review  the  Investment  Policy  annually  and 

approve or amend the Policy as may be recommended by staff. 

On April 12, 2018, the Board approved revisions to the Investment Policy pertaining to non‐bond funds in response 

to change in state law. Certain investment options (in particular, Bills of Exchange and Repurchase Agreements) 

were identified as no longer available or appropriate for ACTA and therefore were removed from Section VIII ‐ 

Authorized  Investments.    In  a  number  of  other  instances  throughout  Section  VIII  ‐  Authorized  Investments, 

revisions were made to restrict the percentage amount for portfolio investments in order to limit the amounts 

that may be  invested  in  certain  investment  instruments.  The  policy  revisions  reduced  exposure  to  losses by 

limiting the amount of money which can be invested in any one type of instrument or with a single issuer. However, 

the investment limitations reduced investment flexibility. 

The SB‐882 Local Government Omnibus Act of 2023, signed into law by Governor Newsom on September 8, 2023, 

and effective  from  January 1, 2024, revised California Government Code Section 53601 which  impacts ACTA’s 

current  Investment  Policy  and  necessitates  that  revisions  to  the  Policy  be  made  accordingly.  The  current 

Investment Policy has been reviewed by CAM and they concur with staff’s recommendation that revisions are 

necessary at this time. 



  March 21, 2024 
    ITEM #3 

  ２

SB‐882 amended California Government Code 53601 subsection (o), revising when local agencies may invest in 

certain  types  of  securities,  namely  mortgage  pass‐through  securities,  collateralized  mortgage  obligations, 

mortgage‐backed or other pay‐through bonds, equipment  lease‐backed certificates, consumer receivable pass‐

through certificates, and consumer receivable‐backed bonds.   SB‐882 did not change when  local agencies may 

invest in these types of securities, namely when the security 1) is rated in a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent 

or better, 2) has a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less and 3) the investment does not exceed 20 

percent of  the agency’s  surplus moneys  that may be  invested pursuant  to Government Code Section 53601. 

However, SB‐882 amended Section 53601(o)  to exempt  the  listed securities  from  these  restrictions when  the 

security is guaranteed or issued by the United States Government or its agencies as set forth in Government Code 

Sections 53601(b) and (f). These Government Code sections define when a security is considered guaranteed or 

issued by the United States Government or its agencies.  By exempting these certain government guaranteed or 

issued securities from Government Code Section 53601(o), a local agency’s investible universe is expanded.  

Under ACTA’s current Investment Policy ACTA, up to 20% of its investable funds may be allocated to the securities 

listed  in  Government  Code  Section  53601(o),  which  remains  the  current  portfolio  investment  percentage 

restriction for non‐government guaranteed or issued securities. The proposed changes to the Investment Policy 

reflect the legislative updates to Government Code Section 53601(o), thus allowing ACTA to invest in United States 

government guaranteed or issued securities as set forth in Government Code Sections 53601 (b) and (f). 

As part of  the  required annual  review and approval process,  staff and  its  investment advisor, Chandler Asset 

Management, review and propose changes to the Investment Policy. This year staff recommends that the Board 

amend the  Investment Policy attached as shown  in Transmittal 1, page 6, Section M. The  Investment Policy  is 

based on the California Government Code Sections as set forth in the Investment Policy. The investment policy 

for  bond  related  funds  included  in  the  Permitted  Investments  definition  of  the Master  Trust  Indenture  is 

unchanged, as any change would require an Amendment of the Master Trust Indenture. 

Budget Impact: 

Approving  the  revised  Investment Policy will have no budget  impact  to  the approved  FY2024 ACTA Program 

Budget. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this board report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Investment Policy highlighting revisions 

Transmittal 2 – Revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Investment Policy not highlighting 

changes (Clean version) 



11 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY

I. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this document is to set forth the policies and procedures for a prudent and
systematic investment policy and to organize and formalize investment-related activities with
respect to certain Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (“ACTA”) funds. This version
of the ACTA Investment Policy was approved by the ACTA Governing Board at a meeting
held on Thursday, April 12, 2018.

The investment policies and practices of ACTA are based upon compliance with the
California Government Code Sections 53600 and 53635 et seq., other state laws as applicable
and prudent investment management as described herein. Should the provisions of the
Government Code change from those contained herein, such provisions will be considered
incorporated in this Policy. It is the policy of ACTA to comply with all federal, state and
local laws governing the investment of certain monies under the control of ACTA. The
monies under the control of ACTA (referred to as the “Funds” throughout the remainder of
this document) will be invested, reinvested, administered, and reported according to this
Policy.

ACTA’s Chief Financial Officer and its Treasurer shall act in accordance with this Policy and
the Prudent Investor Rule in the management of ACTA’s Funds. When acting in accordance
with this Policy, written portfolio guidelines and procedures, and exercising due diligence,
ACTA’s Chief Financial Officer and its Treasurer shall be relieved of personal responsibility
for individual security’s credit risk and/or market price changes, provided that deviations
from expectations are reported in the monthly and quarterly investment reports to the
ACTA Governing Board, and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

Generally, investments shall be made in the context of the “Prudent Investor Rule” as
described in California Government Code Section 53600.3, which states that,

" . . . all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make
investment decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to
this chapter are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor
standard. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or
managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence
under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general
economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting
in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds
of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the
liquidity needs of the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering
individual investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as
authorized by law.”



22 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

This Policy shall remain in effect until the ACTA Governing Board approves a subsequent
revision.

II. SCOPE

It is intended that this Policy cover all Funds and investment activities of ACTA unless
specifically excluded by the Governing Board of ACTA, such as bond funds covered by
ACTA’s Master Trust Indenture.

III. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

A. Safety of Principal

ACTA’s foremost investment objective shall be safety of principal. Each investment
transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from securities
default, broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value. The Treasurer and the
Chief Financial Officer of ACTA shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating the two
major types of risk: credit risk and market risk.

1. Credit Risk. Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a
security, shall be mitigated by investing only with issuers whose financial strength
and reputation can be verified to be highly rated by nationally recognized rating
agencies (see Section VIII. Authorized Investments for detailed limitations on
credit risk), and by diversifying the investment portfolio, consisting of ACTA’s
Local Agency Investment Fund and ACTA’s SR-47 Fund (Investment Portfolio),
so that the failure of any one issuer would not unduly harm ACTA’s cash flow.

2. Market Risk. Market risk, defined as the risk of market value fluctuations due to
overall changes in the general level of interest rates, shall be mitigated by (a)
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature at or near the timing of ACTA’s
major anticipated cash outflows, thus reducing the need to sell securities prior to
their maturity; (b) prohibiting the use of leverage and margin accounts; and (c)
prohibiting the use of short positions-that is, selling securities which ACTA does
not own. It is explicitly recognized herein, however, that in a diversified portfolio,
occasional measured losses are inevitable, and must be considered within the
context of the overall investment return.

B. Liquidity

ACTA’s second objective shall be to have an Investment Portfolio that is sufficiently
liquid to ensure that ACTA can meet all normal operating requirements and
reasonably expected expenditures.

C. Rate of Return on Investment

The third objective for ACTA’s Investment Portfolio shall be to attain a market-
average rate of return through economic cycles consistent with risk limitations as



33 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

defined herein, and prudent investment principles. Through implementation of this
Policy, the Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of ACTA shall seek to enhance
returns above the market average rate of return.

IV. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

The Board delegates its authority to invest Funds of ACTA to the Treasurer and Chief
Financial Officer, who have full responsibility for transactions until the Board delegation of
authority is revoked. The authority to execute investment transactions that will affect the
Fund will be limited to the Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer. ACTA may engage the
services of an Independent Investment Consultant(s) to assist in the management of ACTA’s
Funds. Such Independent Investment Consultant(s) may be granted discretion to purchase
and sell investment securities in accordance with this Policy. Such Independent Investment
Consultant(s) must be registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. All investment
decisions and transactions shall be made in strict accordance with state and federal law and
this Policy.

V. SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES

To protect against potential losses by collapse of individual securities dealers, all securities
owned by ACTA shall be held in safekeeping by a bank trust department, acting as agent for
ACTA under the terms of a custody agreement executed by the bank and ACTA, as
authorized by the Governing Board. All securities will be received and delivered using
standard delivery versus payment procedures, i.e., ACTA’s safekeeping agent will only
release payment for a security after the security has been properly delivered. The only
exception to the foregoing shall be depository accounts and securities purchases made with:
(i) local government investment pools; (ii) time certificates of deposit; and (iii) money market
mutual funds, since the purchased securities are not deliverable. Evidence of these
instruments will be held by the Treasurer or his designee.

VI. REPORTING

MONTHLY REPORTS
Monthly investment reports will be submitted by the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer to
the Governing Body within 30 days of the end of each month. Monthly reports will disclose,
at a minimum, the following information about the characteristics of ACTA’s portfolio:

1. An asset listing of each security showing its par value, cost, independent third-party fair
market value as of the date of the report, the source of the valuation, type of investment,
issuer, maturity date and interest rate.

2. Transactions during the reporting period.

3. A one-page summary report that shows:
a. Average maturity of the portfolio and modified duration of the portfolio;
b. Maturity distribution of the portfolio;
c. Average portfolio credit quality; and,



44 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

d. Time-weighted total rate of return for the portfolio for the prior one month, three
months, twelve months and since inception compared to ACTA’s market benchmark
returns for the same periods.

4. A statement of compliance with ACTA’s Investment Policy, including a schedule of any
transactions or holdings which do not comply with this Investment Policy or the
California Government Code, including a justification for their presence in the portfolio
and a timetable for resolution.

5. A statement denoting ACTA’s ability to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six
months, or an explanation as to why sufficient money shall not be available.

ANNUAL REPORTS
A comprehensive annual report will be presented to the Governing Board. This report will
include comparisons of ACTA’s return to the market benchmark return, suggest policies and
improvements that might enhance the investment program, and will include an investment
plan for the coming year.

VII. QUALIFIED DEALERS

ACTA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, Federal savings banks, and
investment security dealers in compliance with MSRB Rule G-37. ACTA’s Independent
Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall transact business only with those securities firms which
are on their “approved broker list” and whose annual reports are on file at the Independent
Investment Consultant’s place of business.

VIII. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

ACTA’s Investment Policy is governed by the California Government Code. This Policy
conforms to the Code as well as to customary standards of prudent investment management.
Should the provisions of the Code become more restrictive than those contained herein, such
provisions will be considered as immediately incorporated in this Policy. Percentage holding
limits listed in this section apply at the time the security is purchased.

Within the context of these limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further
limited herein:

A. Bonds issued by ACTA, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by ACTA. Investments
in Bonds issued by ACTA shall not exceed 20% of the portfolio.

B. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes, or “when issued” securities of the
United States Government for such securities, or those for which the full faith and
credit of the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is
no limitation as to the percentage of the portfolio which can be invested in this
category. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs or five
years, whichever is less.



55 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

C. Registered State Warrants or Treasury notes or bonds (Debt) of the State of California,
including bonds, payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing
property owned, controlled, or operated by the State of California or by a department,
board, agency, or authority of the State, so long as such Debt of the State is rated “A”
or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. Investments in
Debt shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio. Maturity shall not exceed the projected
dates of ACTA’s cash needs or five years, whichever is less.

D. Registered Treasury notes or bonds (Local Debt) of any of the other 49 states of the
United States of America in addition to California, including bonds, payable solely
out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or
operated by the a state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of any other of
the 49 states of the United States of America in addition to California, so long as
such Local Debt of the State of California or any other of the 49 states of the United
States of America is rated “A” or higher by a nationally recognized
statistical-rating organization. Investments in Local Debt shall not exceed 5%
of the portfolio. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash
needs or five years, whichever is less.

E. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations,
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as
to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored
enterprises (Federal Agency Debt). Investments in Federal Agency Debt shall not
exceed 50% of the portfolio. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s
cash needs or five years, whichever is less.

F. Commercial Paper. Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of
the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a nationally recognized
statistical-rating organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall meet
all of the following conditions in either paragraph (1) or paragraph (2):

1. The entity meets the following criteria: (a) Is organized and operating in the
United States as a general corporation; (b) Has total assets in excess of five
hundred million dollars ($500,000,000); and (c) Has debt other than commercial
paper, if any, that is rated “A” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating
organization.

2. The entity meets the following criteria: (a) is organized within the United States
as a special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company; (b) has
program wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, over
collateralization, letters of credit, or surety bond; (c) has commercial paper that is
rated “A-1” or higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally recognized
statistical-rating organization.

Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 25% of the market value of
the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be invested
in commercial paper issued by any one corporation. Maturity shall not exceed 270
days.



66 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

G. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state
or federal saving and loan association. Negotiable certificates of deposit (NCDs) differ
from other certificates of deposit by their deposit liquidity. They are issued against
funds deposited for specified periods of time and earn specified or variable rates of
interest. NCDs are traded actively in secondary markets. The maximum maturity of
NCDs shall not exceed two years. Transactions in NCDs shall not collectively exceed
20% of the total portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may
be invested in NCDs issued by any one institution. Purchases are limited to institutions
which have long-term debt rated “A” or better and/or have short-term debt rated at
least “A1” by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization.

H. Local Agency Investment Fund. ACTA may invest in the Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer for the benefit of local agencies up to
the maximum amount permitted by State Law.

I. Time Deposits. ACTA may invest in non-negotiable time deposits collateralized in
accordance with the California Government Code and do so in those banks and
savings and loan associations which meet the requirements for investment in
negotiable certificates of deposit. Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than
15% of the portfolio may be invested in this category. No more than 5% of the market
value of the portfolio may be invested in non-negotiable time deposits issued by any
one issuer. The issuer firm shall have been in existence for at least five years prior to
the time of investment. Time deposits are required to be collateralized as specified
under Government Code Section 53630 et seq. ACTA may waive the first $100,000
of collateral security for such deposits if the issue is insured pursuant to federal law.
Real estate mortgages may not be accepted as collateral. The maximum term for
deposits shall be one year. In general, the issuer firm must have a minimum 6% net
worth to assets ratio. The issuer firm’s operations must have been profitable during
their last reporting period. The issuer firm must have received a minimum overall
“satisfactory” rating for meeting the credit needs of California Communities in its
most recent evaluation, as provided by Government Code Section 53635.2.

J. Los Angeles County Treasurer Investment Pool. ACTA may invest in the County’s
Investment Pool as prescribed by the California Government Code.

K. Money Market Funds. ACTA may invest in Money Market Funds that invest solely
in U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities, and repurchase
agreements secured by U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency
securities and which shall have also met the following criteria in either Paragraph (1)
or Paragraph (2):

1. Have attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical rating
provided by not less than two nationally recognized statistical-rating organizations.

2. Have retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from registration with
the Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five years' experience



77 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

investing in U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities and
with assets under management in excess of $500 million.

No more than 20% of the portfolio may be invested in Money Market Funds, with no
more than 10% invested in any one Money Market Fund.

L. Medium-term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt securities
with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by corporations
organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed
by the United States or any state and operating within the United States. Purchases
are limited to securities rated “A” or better by a nationally recognized statistical-rating
organization. ACTA may invest no more than 30% of the portfolio in Corporate
Bonds or Notes and no more than 5% of the portfolio with a single corporate issuer.
Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs.

M. Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage-
backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer
receivable pass-through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond from issuers
not defined in sections B and E of the authorized investments section of this policy-
of a maximum of five years maturity. Securities eligible for investment under this
subdivision shall be issued by an issuer having an “A” or higher rating for the issuer’s
debt by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization and rated in a rating of
category of “AA.” Purchase of securities authorized by this subdivision may not
exceed 20% of ACTA’s money that may be invested pursuant to this Section M. No
more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested in any single Asset-Backed or
Commercial Mortgage issuer. There is no limitation on any mortgage security where
the issuer is the U.S. Treasury or a Federal Agency/Government Sponsored
Enterprise. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs or
five years, whichever is less.

N. Supranational Organizations, provided that issues are U.S. dollar denominated senior
unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance
Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank. The securities shall be rated
“AA” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization, with a
maximum maturity not exceeding five years. No more than 30% of the portfolio may
be invested in these securities, and no more than 10% of the portfolio may be invested
in any single issuer.

O. Authorized Investments for Bond Funds and Proceeds. Bond funds and proceeds
shall be invested in securities permitted by the applicable bond documents. If the
bond documents are silent as to the permitted investments, bond funds and proceeds
will be invested in securities permitted by this Policy.

In addition to securities authorized for the investment of bond funds and proceeds,
bond funds and proceeds may be invested in Guaranteed Investment Contracts and
Investment Agreements with issuers of “AA” rating or better by a nationally
recognized statistical-rating organization. Such contracts shall have a maximum of five
years maturity. Unless otherwise authorized by the applicable bond documents, no



88 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

more than 25% of the portfolio may be invested in such contracts and no more than
5% of the portfolio may be placed under contract with a single entity.

With respect to maximum maturities, unless otherwise authorized by the applicable
bond documents, bond reserve fund proceeds may be invested in securities with
maturities that exceed five years if in the opinion of the Treasurer or Chief Financial
Officer it is prudent to make such an investment.

XIV. INELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS

Investments not described herein, including but not limited to, repurchase agreements and
reverse repurchase agreements, Bankers Acceptances, and common stocks are prohibited
from use in ACTA’s portfolio. Section 53601.6 of the Government Code specifically
disallows investments in inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips that are derived
from a pool of mortgages, or in any security that could result in zero interest accrual if held
to maturity.

X. TRADING OF SECURITIES

The purchase and sale transaction must each be recorded separately and any losses or gains
on the sale must be recorded.

XI. PORTFOLIO ADJUSTMENTS

In the event that an investment percentage-of-portfolio limitation in Section VIII is exceeded
due to an incident such as a fluctuation in the portfolio’s size, the affected securities may
continue to be held to avoid losses. If the sale of an affected security would not result in a
loss, the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer shall consider restructuring the portfolio through
sale of the affected securities or other means, and base their decision in part on the expected
length of time the portfolio would be out of compliance with the Policy if no sale were made.

XII. PORTFOLIO DURATION LIMITATION

The objective of this Policy is to provide a system which will accurately monitor and forecast
revenues and expenditures so that ACTA can invest Funds to the fullest extent possible.

The maximum maturity of individual investments shall not exceed the limits set forth in
Section VIII. Authorized Investments. However, no investment shall exceed a maturity of
five years from the date of purchase unless the Board has granted express authority to make
that investment either 1) specifically, 2) as part of the investment provisions relating to a bond
issuance and authorized by the applicable bond documents, or 3) as part of an investment
program approved by the Board no less than one month prior to the investment. The
weighted average duration of the entire portfolio shall not exceed three (3) years.

XIII. CERTIFICATION OF UNDERSTANDING

All Financial Institutions and Independent Investment Consultant(s) who do investment-
related business with ACTA shall receive a copy of this Policy and sign a Certification of



99 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018
Confirmed February 24, 2023

Understanding. The Certification of Understanding shall state that each employee of the
entity serving ACTA:

A. Has read and understands ACTA’s Investment Policy, as well as applicable federal and
state laws;

B. Meets the requirements of Article VII of ACTA’s Investment Policy;

C. Agrees to make every reasonable effort to protect the assets of ACTA from loss;

D. Agrees to notify ACTA in writing of any potential conflicts of interest; and

E. Agrees to notify ACTA in writing of any changes in personnel with decision-making
authority over ACTA’s funds within 24 hours of such event.

XIV. MONITORING CREDIT RATINGS

Independent Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall monitor the ratings of all investments in
assigned portfolios on a continuous basis. Independent Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall
report to the Chief Financial Officer in writing within 24 hours of any credit event for any
investment in which there is a credit downgrade to a rating that is lower than that required by
Section VIII Authorized Investments. If an existing investment’s rating drops below the
minimum allowed for new investments made pursuant to this Policy, the Independent
Investment Consultant(s) shall also make a written recommendation to the Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer as to whether the downgraded security should be held or sold.

XV. POLICY REVIEW

This Investment Policy shall be reviewed regularly by the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer,
and submitted to the Board for its approval at least annually to ensure its consistency with the
overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity, and return, and its relevance to current
law and financial and economic trends. The Board shall be responsible for maintaining
guidance over this Investment Policy to ensure that ACTA can adapt readily to changing
market conditions, and approve any modification to the Investment Policy prior to
implementation. Any changes in the Investment Policy shall be reviewed and approved by
the Board at a public meeting.



0
Table Insert

Changes:

0
Table Delete 0

Add

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Table moves to

1

0

Summary report:
Litera Compare for Word 11.4.0.111 Document comparison done on

3/6/2024 3:46:07 PM

Table moves from 0

Delete

Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.)

1

0

Original filename: 03 March 2024 Transmittal 1 -
Investment-Policy-Confirmed-February-2023 - v2.docx

Embedded Excel 0

Move From

Format changes

0

0
Total Changes:

Modified filename: 03 March 2024 Transmittal 1 -
Investment-Policy-Confirmed-February-2023 - v1.docx

2

Move To

Style name: SMRH Standard



1 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

The purpose of this document is to set forth the policies and procedures for a prudent and 
systematic investment policy and to organize and formalize investment-related activities with 
respect to certain Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (“ACTA”) funds. This version 
of the ACTA Investment Policy was approved by the ACTA Governing Board at a meeting 
held on Thursday, April 12, 2018. 

 
The investment policies and practices of ACTA are based upon compliance with the 
California Government Code Sections 53600 and 53635 et seq., other state laws as applicable 
and prudent investment management as described herein. Should the provisions of the 
Government Code change from those contained herein, such provisions will be considered 
incorporated in this Policy. It is the policy of ACTA to comply with all federal, state and local 
laws governing the investment of certain monies under the control of ACTA. The monies 
under the control of ACTA (referred to as the “Funds” throughout the remainder of this 
document) will be invested, reinvested, administered, and reported according to this Policy. 

 
ACTA’s Chief Financial Officer and its Treasurer shall act in accordance with this Policy and 
the Prudent Investor Rule in the management of ACTA’s Funds. When acting in accordance 
with this Policy, written portfolio guidelines and procedures, and exercising due diligence, 
ACTA’s Chief Financial Officer and its Treasurer shall be relieved of personal responsibility 
for individual security’s credit risk and/or market price changes, provided that deviations from 
expectations are reported in the monthly and quarterly investment reports to the ACTA 
Governing Board, and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 
Generally, investments shall be made in the context of the “Prudent Investor Rule” as 
described in California Government Code Section 53600.3, which states that, 

 
" . . . all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment 
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter 
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public 
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic 
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity 
needs of the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual 
investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized 
by law.” 



2 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

This Policy shall remain in effect until the ACTA Governing Board approves a subsequent 
revision. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
It is intended that this Policy cover all Funds and investment activities of ACTA unless 
specifically excluded by the Governing Board of ACTA, such as bond funds covered by 
ACTA’s Master Trust Indenture. 

 
III. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

 
A. Safety of Principal 

 
ACTA’s foremost investment objective shall be safety of principal. Each investment 
transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from securities 
default, broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value. The Treasurer and the Chief 
Financial Officer of ACTA shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating the two major 
types of risk: credit risk and market risk. 

 
1. Credit Risk. Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a 

security, shall be mitigated by investing only with issuers whose financial strength 
and reputation can be verified to be highly rated by nationally recognized rating 
agencies (see Section VIII. Authorized Investments for detailed limitations on 
credit risk), and by diversifying the investment portfolio, consisting of ACTA’s 
Local Agency Investment Fund and ACTA’s SR-47 Fund (Investment Portfolio), 
so that the failure of any one issuer would not unduly harm ACTA’s cash flow. 

 
2. Market Risk. Market risk, defined as the risk of market value fluctuations due to 

overall changes in the general level of interest rates, shall be mitigated by (a) 
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature at or near the timing of ACTA’s 
major anticipated cash outflows, thus reducing the need to sell securities prior to 
their maturity; (b) prohibiting the use of leverage and margin accounts; and (c) 
prohibiting the use of short positions-that is, selling securities which ACTA does 
not own. It is explicitly recognized herein, however, that in a diversified portfolio, 
occasional measured losses are inevitable, and must be considered within the 
context of the overall investment return. 

 
B. Liquidity 

 
ACTA’s second objective shall be to have an Investment Portfolio that is sufficiently 
liquid to ensure that ACTA can meet all normal operating requirements and reasonably 
expected expenditures. 

 
C. Rate of Return on Investment 

 
The third objective for ACTA’s Investment Portfolio shall be to attain a market- 
average rate of return through economic cycles consistent with risk limitations as 



3 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

defined herein, and prudent investment principles. Through implementation of this 
Policy, the Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of ACTA shall seek to enhance 
returns above the market average rate of return. 

 
IV. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

 
The Board delegates its authority to invest Funds of ACTA to the Treasurer and Chief 
Financial Officer, who have full responsibility for transactions until the Board delegation of 
authority is revoked. The authority to execute investment transactions that will affect the Fund 
will be limited to the Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer. ACTA may engage the services 
of an Independent Investment Consultant(s) to assist in the management of ACTA’s Funds. 
Such Independent Investment Consultant(s) may be granted discretion to purchase and sell 
investment securities in accordance with this Policy. Such Independent Investment 
Consultant(s) must be registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. All investment 
decisions and transactions shall be made in strict accordance with state and federal law and 
this Policy. 

 
V. SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES 

 
To protect against potential losses by collapse of individual securities dealers, all securities 
owned by ACTA shall be held in safekeeping by a bank trust department, acting as agent for 
ACTA under the terms of a custody agreement executed by the bank and ACTA, as authorized 
by the Governing Board. All securities will be received and delivered using standard delivery 
versus payment procedures, i.e., ACTA’s safekeeping agent will only release payment for a 
security after the security has been properly delivered. The only exception to the foregoing 
shall be depository accounts and securities purchases made with: (i) local government 
investment pools; (ii) time certificates of deposit; and (iii) money market mutual funds, since 
the purchased securities are not deliverable. Evidence of these instruments will be held by the 
Treasurer or his designee. 

 
VI. REPORTING 

 
MONTHLY REPORTS 
Monthly investment reports will be submitted by the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer to 
the Governing Body within 30 days of the end of each month. Monthly reports will disclose, 
at a minimum, the following information about the characteristics of ACTA’s portfolio: 

 
1. An asset listing of each security showing its par value, cost, independent third-party fair 

market value as of the date of the report, the source of the valuation, type of investment, 
issuer, maturity date and interest rate. 

 
2. Transactions during the reporting period. 

 
3. A one-page summary report that shows: 

a. Average maturity of the portfolio and modified duration of the portfolio; 
b. Maturity distribution of the portfolio; 
c. Average portfolio credit quality; and, 



4 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

d. Time-weighted total rate of return for the portfolio for the prior one month, three 
months, twelve months and since inception compared to ACTA’s market benchmark 
returns for the same periods. 

 
4. A statement of compliance with ACTA’s Investment Policy, including a schedule of any 

transactions or holdings which do not comply with this Investment Policy or the California 
Government Code, including a justification for their presence in the portfolio and a 
timetable for resolution. 

 
5. A statement denoting ACTA’s ability to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six 

months, or an explanation as to why sufficient money shall not be available. 
 

ANNUAL REPORTS 
A comprehensive annual report will be presented to the Governing Board. This report will 
include comparisons of ACTA’s return to the market benchmark return, suggest policies and 
improvements that might enhance the investment program, and will include an investment 
plan for the coming year. 

 
VII. QUALIFIED DEALERS 

 
ACTA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, Federal savings banks, and 
investment security dealers in compliance with MSRB Rule G-37. ACTA’s Independent 
Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall transact business only with those securities firms which 
are on their “approved broker list” and whose annual reports are on file at the Independent 
Investment Consultant’s place of business. 

 
VIII. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

 
ACTA’s Investment Policy is governed by the California Government Code. This Policy 
conforms to the Code as well as to customary standards of prudent investment management. 
Should the provisions of the Code become more restrictive than those contained herein, such 
provisions will be considered as immediately incorporated in this Policy. Percentage holding 
limits listed in this section apply at the time the security is purchased. 

 
Within the context of these limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further 
limited herein: 

 
A. Bonds issued by ACTA, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 

revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by ACTA. Investments 
in Bonds issued by ACTA shall not exceed 20% of the portfolio. 

 
B. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes, or “when issued” securities of the 

United States Government for such securities, or those for which the full faith and 
credit of the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is 
no limitation as to the percentage of the portfolio which can be invested in this 
category. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs or five 
years, whichever is less. 



5 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

C. Registered State Warrants or Treasury notes or bonds (Debt) of the State of California, 
including bonds, payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property 
owned, controlled, or operated by the State of California or by a department, board, 
agency, or authority of the State, so long as such Debt of the State is rated “A” or higher 
by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. Investments in Debt shall not 
exceed 5% of the portfolio. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s 
cash needs or five years, whichever is less. 

 
D. Registered Treasury notes or bonds (Local Debt) of any of the other 49 states of the 

United States of America in addition to California, including bonds, payable solely out 
of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by 
the a state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of any other of the 49 states 
of the United States of America in addition to California, so long as such Local Debt 
of the State of California or any other of the 49 states of the United States of America 
is rated “A” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. 
Investments in Local Debt shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio. Maturity shall 
not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs or five years, whichever is less. 

 
E. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as 
to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored 
enterprises (Federal Agency Debt). Investments in Federal Agency Debt shall not 
exceed 50% of the portfolio. Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s 
cash needs or five years, whichever is less. 

 
F. Commercial Paper. Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of 

the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a nationally recognized 
statistical-rating organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall meet 
all of the following conditions in either paragraph (1) or paragraph (2): 

 
1. The entity meets the following criteria: (a) Is organized and operating in the United 

States as a general corporation; (b) Has total assets in excess of five hundred 
million dollars ($500,000,000); and (c) Has debt other than commercial paper, if 
any, that is rated “A” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating 
organization. 

 
2. The entity meets the following criteria: (a) is organized within the United States as 

a special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company; (b) has program 
wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, 
letters of credit, or surety bond; (c) has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or 
higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. 

 
Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 25% of the market value of 
the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be invested 
in commercial paper issued by any one corporation. Maturity shall not exceed 270 
days. 



6 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

G. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state 
or federal saving and loan association. Negotiable certificates of deposit (NCDs) differ 
from other certificates of deposit by their deposit liquidity. They are issued against 
funds deposited for specified periods of time and earn specified or variable rates of 
interest. NCDs are traded actively in secondary markets. The maximum maturity of 
NCDs shall not exceed two years. Transactions in NCDs shall not collectively exceed 
20% of the total portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may 
be invested in NCDs issued by any one institution. Purchases are limited to institutions 
which have long-term debt rated “A” or better and/or have short-term debt rated at 
least “A1” by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization. 

 
H. Local Agency Investment Fund. ACTA may invest in the Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer for the benefit of local agencies up to 
the maximum amount permitted by State Law. 

 
I. Time Deposits. ACTA may invest in non-negotiable time deposits collateralized in 

accordance with the California Government Code and do so in those banks and 
savings and loan associations which meet the requirements for investment in 
negotiable certificates of deposit. Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than 15% 
of the portfolio may be invested in this category. No more than 5% of the market value 
of the portfolio may be invested in non-negotiable time deposits issued by any one 
issuer. The issuer firm shall have been in existence for at least five years prior to the 
time of investment. Time deposits are required to be collateralized as specified under 
Government Code Section 53630 et seq. ACTA may waive the first $100,000 of 
collateral security for such deposits if the issue is insured pursuant to federal law. Real 
estate mortgages may not be accepted as collateral. The maximum term for deposits 
shall be one year. In general, the issuer firm must have a minimum 6% net worth to 
assets ratio. The issuer firm’s operations must have been profitable during their last 
reporting period. The issuer firm must have received a minimum overall “satisfactory” 
rating for meeting the credit needs of California Communities in its most recent 
evaluation, as provided by Government Code Section 53635.2. 

 
J. Los Angeles County Treasurer Investment Pool. ACTA may invest in the County’s 

Investment Pool as prescribed by the California Government Code. 
 

K. Money Market Funds. ACTA may invest in Money Market Funds that invest solely in 
U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities, and repurchase 
agreements secured by U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency 
securities and which shall have also met the following criteria in either Paragraph (1) 
or Paragraph (2): 

 
1. Have attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical rating 

provided by not less than two nationally recognized statistical-rating organizations. 
 

2. Have retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from registration with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five years' experience 



7 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

investing in U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities and 
with assets under management in excess of $500 million. 

 
No more than 20% of the portfolio may be invested in Money Market Funds, with no 
more than 10% invested in any one Money Market Fund. 

 
L. Medium-term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt securities 

with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by corporations 
organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed 
by the United States or any state and operating within the United States. Purchases 
are limited to securities rated “A” or better by a nationally recognized statistical-rating 
organization. ACTA may invest no more than 30% of the portfolio in Corporate 
Bonds or Notes and no more than 5% of the portfolio with a single corporate issuer. 
Maturity shall not exceed the projected dates of ACTA’s cash needs. 

 
M. Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage- 

backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer 
receivable pass-through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond from issuers 
not defined in sections B and E of the authorized investments section of this policy of a 
maximum of five years maturity. Securities eligible for investment under this 
subdivision shall be rated in a rating of category of “AA” or higher. Purchase of 
securities authorized by this subdivision may not exceed 20% of ACTA’s money that 
may be invested pursuant to this Section M. No more than 5% of the portfolio may 
be invested in any single Asset-Backed or Commercial Mortgage issuer. There is no 
limitation on any mortgage security where the issuer is the U.S. Treasury or a Federal 
Agency/Government Sponsored Enterprise. Maturity shall not exceed the projected 
dates of ACTA’s cash needs or five years, whichever is less. 

 
N. Supranational Organizations, provided that issues are U.S. dollar denominated senior 

unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance 
Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank. The securities shall be rated 
“AA” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization, with a 
maximum maturity not exceeding five years. No more than 30% of the portfolio may 
be invested in these securities, and no more than 10% of the portfolio may be invested 
in any single issuer. 

 
O. Authorized Investments for Bond Funds and Proceeds. Bond funds and proceeds 

shall be invested in securities permitted by the applicable bond documents. If the bond 
documents are silent as to the permitted investments, bond funds and proceeds will be 
invested in securities permitted by this Policy. 

 
In addition to securities authorized for the investment of bond funds and proceeds, 
bond funds and proceeds may be invested in Guaranteed Investment Contracts and 
Investment Agreements with issuers of “AA” rating or better by a nationally 
recognized statistical-rating organization. Such contracts shall have a maximum of five 
years maturity. Unless otherwise authorized by the applicable bond documents, no 



8 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

more than 25% of the portfolio may be invested in such contracts and no more than 
5% of the portfolio may be placed under contract with a single entity. 

 
With respect to maximum maturities, unless otherwise authorized by the applicable 
bond documents, bond reserve fund proceeds may be invested in securities with 
maturities that exceed five years if in the opinion of the Treasurer or Chief Financial 
Officer it is prudent to make such an investment. 

 
XIV. INELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS 

 
Investments not described herein, including but not limited to, repurchase agreements and 
reverse repurchase agreements, Bankers Acceptances, and common stocks are prohibited 
from use in ACTA’s portfolio. Section 53601.6 of the Government Code specifically disallows 
investments in inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips that are derived from a pool 
of mortgages, or in any security that could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity. 

 
X. TRADING OF SECURITIES 

 
The purchase and sale transaction must each be recorded separately and any losses or gains 
on the sale must be recorded. 

 
XI. PORTFOLIO ADJUSTMENTS 

 
In the event that an investment percentage-of-portfolio limitation in Section VIII is exceeded 
due to an incident such as a fluctuation in the portfolio’s size, the affected securities may 
continue to be held to avoid losses. If the sale of an affected security would not result in a 
loss, the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer shall consider restructuring the portfolio through 
sale of the affected securities or other means, and base their decision in part on the expected 
length of time the portfolio would be out of compliance with the Policy if no sale were made. 

 
XII. PORTFOLIO DURATION LIMITATION 

 
The objective of this Policy is to provide a system which will accurately monitor and forecast 
revenues and expenditures so that ACTA can invest Funds to the fullest extent possible. 

 
The maximum maturity of individual investments shall not exceed the limits set forth in 
Section VIII. Authorized Investments. However, no investment shall exceed a maturity of 
five years from the date of purchase unless the Board has granted express authority to make 
that investment either 1) specifically, 2) as part of the investment provisions relating to a bond 
issuance and authorized by the applicable bond documents, or 3) as part of an investment 
program approved by the Board no less than one month prior to the investment. The weighted 
average duration of the entire portfolio shall not exceed three (3) years. 

 
XIII. CERTIFICATION OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
All Financial Institutions and Independent Investment Consultant(s) who do investment- 
related business with ACTA shall receive a copy of this Policy and sign a Certification of 



9 Approved by the ACTA Governing Board on April 12, 2018 
Confirmed February 24, 2023 

 

Understanding. The Certification of Understanding shall state that each employee of the entity 
serving ACTA: 

 
A. Has read and understands ACTA’s Investment Policy, as well as applicable federal and 

state laws; 
 

B. Meets the requirements of Article VII of ACTA’s Investment Policy; 
 

C. Agrees to make every reasonable effort to protect the assets of ACTA from loss; 
 

D. Agrees to notify ACTA in writing of any potential conflicts of interest; and 
 

E. Agrees to notify ACTA in writing of any changes in personnel with decision-making 
authority over ACTA’s funds within 24 hours of such event. 

 
XIV. MONITORING CREDIT RATINGS 

 
Independent Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall monitor the ratings of all investments in 
assigned portfolios on a continuous basis. Independent Investment Consultant(s), if any, shall 
report to the Chief Financial Officer in writing within 24 hours of any credit event for any 
investment in which there is a credit downgrade to a rating that is lower than that required by 
Section VIII Authorized Investments. If an existing investment’s rating drops below the 
minimum allowed for new investments made pursuant to this Policy, the Independent 
Investment Consultant(s) shall also make a written recommendation to the Treasurer and 
Chief Financial Officer as to whether the downgraded security should be held or sold. 

 
XV. POLICY REVIEW 

 
This Investment Policy shall be reviewed regularly by the Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer, 
and submitted to the Board for its approval at least annually to ensure its consistency with the 
overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity, and return, and its relevance to current 
law and financial and economic trends. The Board shall be responsible for maintaining 
guidance over this Investment Policy to ensure that ACTA can adapt readily to changing 
market conditions, and approve any modification to the Investment Policy prior to 
implementation. Any changes in the Investment Policy shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Board at a public meeting. 



  ITEM #4 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  March 21, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE 2024‐2025 Renewal of Insurance Coverage 

Recommendation: 

It recommended that the Governing Board authorize the Chief Financial Officer or his designee to: 

1. Negotiate and accept the recommendations of Willis Towers Watson ("Willis"), ACTA's Broker of Record, 

for placement of required insurance for the period April 15, 2024 through April 14, 2025; and 

2. Bind insurance, on behalf of ACTA, in accordance with the recommendations of Willis. 

Renewal Process: 

Each year ACTA's Broker of Record reviews ACTA's  insurance needs and solicits bids for  insurance coverage on 

behalf of ACTA.   The current  insurance policies will need to be renewed effective April 15, 2024.   ACTA carries 

eight types of insurance coverage, as shown on the attached Insurance Program Schematic in Transmittal 1. 

ACTA's insurance year begins on April 15 and ends on April 14 of the following year.  ACTA purchases insurance 

policies covering Corridor Property, Difference  in Conditions, Terrorism, Railroad Liability, Auto Liability, Office 

Property, Workers' Compensation, Directors & Officers Liability, and Crime Insurance.  Certain policies, including 

Corridor Property  Insurance with an associated Business  Interruption Rider  are  required by  the  terms of  the 

Master Trust Indenture.  Under the terms of the Use & Operating Agreement, the Railroads reimburse ACTA for 

premiums for the Corridor Property and Railroad Liability policies. 

On February 6, 2024, ACTA staff met with representatives from ACTA's Broker of Record, Willis, to begin the annual 

insurance policy renewal process.   During the preliminary meeting, Willis  indicated that, as a result of market 

factors, insurance premiums can be expected to increase by about 5% to 8% this year.  With Willis's assistance, 

ACTA completed the insurance applications for use by prospective carriers.  Willis has presented ACTA's insurance 

needs, business model, and financial credentials to appropriate insurance markets to solicit coverage proposals 

on ACTA's behalf.  As of the present, ACTA has received a proposal from the incumbent, which is a 1.6% increase 

from the prior year's renewal.  Willis continues seeking additional proposals from other carriers to ensure annual 

premium  competitiveness  for  the  required  coverage.   Upon  finalization, ACTA  and Willis will meet with  risk 

managers from both railroads to review and approve the coverage.  Upon authorization of the Governing Board, 

the Chief Financial Officer or his designee will bind the final insurance portfolio.  See Transmittal 2 for a Preliminary 

Premium Summary.    

   



  March 21, 2024 
    ITEM #4 

  ２

Budget Impact: 

Willis is compensated directly by ACTA and receives no commission compensation from any insurance company 

or provider.  Costs for the premiums and for Willis are included in the FY24 Budget.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA's Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time.  

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – 2024‐2025 Insurance Program Schematic  

Transmittal 2 – 2024 Preliminary Premium Summary and Comparison to 2023 Insurance Policies 



wtwco.com

1

Transmittal 1 - 2024- 2025 Program Schematic: Updated 03/13/2024
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

© 2024 WTW. Proprietary and confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

$1M

Property
(Corridor)

AIG Specialty
05/15/23-04/15/24

50%
$150M

Extra Expense
$25M

EM
$15M

Flood
$25M

5% of TIV at time of lost
$1M Min 

$12.5 Max

DIC
$25M x $15M

05/15/23-04/15/24
Lloyds 64%
Trisura 36%

Aggregate
EM & Flood

$25M

$250K

Railroad Liability

Indian Harbor
04/15/23-04/15/24

Liability
$15M / $30M

Excess RR Liability

Liberty Surplus
04/15/23-04/15/24

$10M / $20M

$1,000

Property
(Office)

Ohio Security
04/15/23-04/15/24

Blanket BPP
$2,188,544

Building Loc 2
$1,637,048

BIEE
$50K

$1,000

Business Auto

Ohio Security
04/15/23-04/15/24

Liability
$1M

NIL

Workers Comp.

Ohio Security
04/15/23-04/15/24

$1M

Statutory
States: CA

$100K

Public Officials Liability

ACE
04/15/23-04/15/24

Liability
$10M

Excess Public Officials 
Liability

Indian Harbor
04/15/23-04/15/24

$5M

$250K

Crime

Great American Insurance 
Co.

04/15/23-04/15/24

$5M

Excess Crime

Zurich
04/15/23-04/15/24

$5M/$5M

$1M

Terrorism

Lloyds
05/15/23-04/15/24

$300M

Deductible

LEGEND

Property
(Corridor)

Chubb
05/15/23-04/15/24

50%
$150M

Extra Expense
$25M

EM
$15M

Flood
$25M

Property
(Corridor)

Chubb and AIG Specialty
EQ & FL

$15M



2

Transmittal 2 – Preliminary Premium Summary and Comparison  

Coverage 2024 Exposure Exposure% 
Change from 2023

2023
Premium (A)
(Includes 1 month 
extension for 
Corridor Property 
and DIC)

2023 Premium Adj 
for 2024 Exposure 
Change (B)

2024
Premium ( C) 

2024 Premium 
Change before Adj 
(C-A)

2024
 Premium Change 
after Exposure Adj 
(C –B)

Corridor Property (AIG) $1,738,036,876 TIV 2.33% $1,081,693 $1,106,896 $0 $(1,081,693) $(1,106,89)

Corridor Property (Chubb) $1,738,036,876 TIV 2.33% $834,201 $853,638 $1,906,031 $1,071,830 $1,052,393

Terrorism (2022 coverage 
included in Corridor Property 
AIG placement)

$1,761,557,657 2.33% $42,345 43,332 39,708 ($2,637) $(3,624)

DIC $1,761,557,657 TIV 2.33% $352,830 $361,051 $385,000 $32,170 $23,949

Railroad Liability $1,579,245
Payroll

7% $144,160 $154,496 $149,375 $5,215 ($5,121)

Excess Railroad Liability $1,579,245
Payroll

7% $57,690 $61,826 $59,770 $2,080 ($2,056)

Auto 0 Vehicle 0% $297 $297 $297 $0 $0

Office Property $6,968,447 TIV 82% $8,080 $14,706 $11,240 $3,160 ($3,466)

Workers Compensation $1,579,245
Payroll

7% $8,351 $8,351 $9,120 $764 $764

Crime 11 FTE 0% $11,218 $11,218 $11,982 $764 $764

Excess Crime 11 FTE 0% $4,599 $4,599 $5,881 $1,282 $1,282

Directors & Officers / EPL $107,627,326 revenue 7% $61,342 $65,636 $69,213 $7,871 $3,577

Excess Directors & Officers / 
EPL

$107,627,326 revenue 7% $13,500 $14,445 $14,375 $875 ($70)

TOTAL $2,620,306 $2,660,310 $40,004 ($40,181)



  ITEM #5 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Meeting Date:  March 21, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE First Amendment to Agreement No. C0906 with Dudek to add an 
additional 12 months for CEQA consulting services 

Recommendation:  

1) Approve the First Amendment to Agreement No. C0906 with Dudek to add an additional 12 months to 

the term for the continuation of CEQA consulting services.  

2) Authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his delegate to execute said amendment to extend the term of 

agreement C0906 for 12 months through April 09, 2025. 

Background: 

At its February 24, 2023 meeting, the Governing Board authorized the execution of an agreement with Dudek for 

CEQA consulting services related to the Port of Long Beach (POLB) Pier B On‐Dock Rail Support Facility Project 

(Pier  B  Project)  Environmental  Impact  Report  (EIR).  The  agreement  provided  for  a  one‐year  term  and  a 

compensation not‐to‐exceed amount of $50,000.00.  ACTA’s CEO executed the agreement on April 10, 2023. 

The POLB Pier B Project is intended to provide railroad tracks for staging and storing railcars in support of on‐dock 

facilities, thereby increasing rail capacity and efficiency which would benefit ACTA with capabilities to facilitate 

handling increasing rail volumes. 

The POLB Pier B Project EIR/EIS did not name ACTA as an authorizing or coordinating agency. Therefore, ACTA 

needs  to  perform  an  independent  assessment  of  those  environmental  documents  to  verify  that  the  impact 

analyses and findings were appropriately performed. The original schedule to conduct this work in 12 months has 

been exceeded due to Pier B Project delays by POLB. 

Discussion: 

Dudek is nearly complete in providing the CEQA consulting services necessary for the Pier B EIR review. However, 

additional  services may  be  needed  to  support  ACTA  Governing  Board  approval  process  with  responses  to 

questions or requests for additional information.  Sufficient funds remain available to fund anticipated additional 

services and therefore only a term extension is requested at this time.  

ACTA  staff  requests  approval of  the  first  amendment  to  allow Dudek  to  continue providing CEQA  consulting 

services for the POLB Pier B Project.  Approval of the amendment will extend the term of the agreement for an 

additional 12 months, through April 09, 2025.  



   March 21, 2024 
    ITEM #5 

  ２

Budget Impact: 

There will be no net impact to the ACTA Program Budget because there are remaining funds in the agreement 

budget and all expenditures made under the agreement are reimbursed by POLB.  ACTA pays up‐front for Dudek’s 

services  utilizing  funds  from  ACTA’s  Local  Agency  Investment  Fund  (LAIF)  account.    The  LAIF  account  is 

subsequently reimbursed by funds from POLB. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed first amendment as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – First Amendment to Dudek Agreement No. C0906 



FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO AGREEMENT NO. C0906 

BETWEEN 
THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND DUDEK 
 

 
          THIS FIRST AMENDMENT to Agreement No. C0906 is made and entered into by 
the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority ("ACTA"), acting by and through its 
Governing Board, and Dudek (“Consultant”) as follows: 

 
1. Article 4.2 is hereby removed and replaced in its entirety, as follows: 
 

“4.2 Commencing on the Agreement’s effective date, this Agreement 
shall be in full force and effect until the earlier of the following occurs: 

 
a. Two (2) years has lapsed from the effective date of this Agreement; or 

 
b. ACTA’s Board, in its sole discretion, terminates this Agreement 

pursuant to Section 6.” 
 
 

Except as amended herein, all remaining terms and conditions of Agreement No. 
C0906 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
The effective date of this amendment shall be the date of its execution by ACTA’s 

Chief Executive Officer or his designee. 
 
 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 

 
 
 

  



Amendment 1 
Agreement No. C0906 

Dudek 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment 
to Agreement No. C0906 on the date to the left of their signatures.  

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Date: By: 
Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
Chief Executive Officer 

Attest: 
Secretary 

DUDEK 

Date: By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Attest:  

Name:  

Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELSTEIN SOTO, Los Angeles City Attorney 

By _______________________________ 
Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
ACTA Co-General Counsel 



  ITEM #6 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Meeting Date:  March 21, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE Amendment No. 2 to Contract C0885 to extend term of RailWorks Track 
Services LLC agreement for an additional 5 years and modify certain terms and 
definitions in the agreement 

Recommendation:  

Authorize  the Chief Executive Officer or his delegate  to execute Amendment No. 2  to extend  the  term of  the 

RailWorks Track Services LLC Agreement C0885 for an additional 5 years and modify certain terms and definitions 

in the agreement. 

Background: 

At  its April 11, 2019, meeting, the Governing Board authorized the execution of an agreement with RailWorks 

Track Services, Inc. (RailWorks) to provide maintenance services including track, signal, communications systems 

and  appurtenances  of  the  Corridor.  The  selection  of RailWorks was  the  result  of  a  competitive RFP  process 

recommendation, and approval by Notice of Mutual Agreement (NMA) from the Parties of the Use & Operating 

Agreement. The contract provided for a five‐year term through April 2024 with an option for a five‐year extension 

through April 2029 with Governing Board approval. 

Certain definitions and terms of the Agreement C0885 were changed by executed Amendment No. 1, effective 

January 01, 2020. 

At its May 19, 2022 meeting, the Governing Board authorized the execution of an Assignment and Assumption 

Agreement to accommodate the assignment of the agreement when RailWorks Track Services, Inc. changed from 

a corporation to a limited liability company, RailWorks Track Services, LLC. The initial term ends at 11:59 p.m. on 

April 14, 2024 and ACTA has not selected a replacement contractor.   

Discussion: 

ACTA staff recommends extension of Agreement C0885, which will enable continuation of maintenance services 

while providing  flexibility  to evaluate  the costs and benefits of  recompeting  the contract  in  the  coming year. 

Recompeting the Maintenance Services Contract is a significant effort and extending Agreement C0885 will enable 

the decision to recompete to be made and, if necessary, the RFP process to be conducted while continuing the 

maintenance services under the current agreement. Amendment 2 to the agreement will also clarify some terms 

that were found to be ambiguous during the first 5 years of the maintenance services.   

To enable continuation of maintenance services, the Board is requested to authorize the Chief Executive Officer 

or his delegate to execute Amendment 2 of agreement C0885 to extend the term for an additional 5 years, through 

April 15, 2029.  Also, terms and definitions are modified in the agreement for clarification. 



   March 21, 2024 
    ITEM #6 

  ２

Budget Impact: 

Funds  for  the Maintenance Services Agreement are already  included  in ACTA’s FY24 Program Budget and  the 

extended term will be included in the future years’ Program Budgets. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Amendment as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Second Amendment to RailWorks Agreement No. C0885 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. C0885 BETWEEN  
THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES LLC 
 

THIS SECOND AGREEMENT to Agreement No. C0885 (“Second Amendment”) 
is made and entered into by and between the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a California Joint Powers Authority, (“ACTA”), and 
RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES LLC, an Indiana limited liability company, 
(“Contractor”). 
 

WHEREAS, Agreement No. C0885 between ACTA and Contractor was entered 
into commencing May 1, 2019 and amended by that certain First Amendment to 
Agreement No. C0885, effective as of January 1, 2020, (collectively, the “Agreement”); 
and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to such Agreement, Contractor provides required 
maintenance services for the Rail Corridor and Non-Rail Components; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties now desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of 

the Agreement for an additional five (5) years, revise the definitions of “Allowed Markup” 
and “Local Administrative and Office Support Costs,” and modify ACTA’s audit rights. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the terms, covenants, 
and conditions hereinafter provided, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. Pursuant to Section 4.1 of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement is hereby 

extended for an additional term of five (5) years, commencing on April 14, 2024 
and terminating at 11:59 p.m. Los Angeles time on April 15, 2029. 

 
2. The definition of “Allowed Markup” is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 

with the following: 
 

 “‘Allowed Markup’ means a percentage which shall be added to the 
costs and expenses actually incurred by Contractor in purchasing or 
providing equipment, materials, supplies and/or other Direct Costs, 
including the costs of subcontracting and vendor services, in 
connection with Contractor’s performance of the Services under this 
Agreement.  This percentage shall equal 5 percent (5%) for labor, 5 
percent (5%) for Subcontractors’ entire costs (including 
Subcontractors’ materials, equipment, and supplies), and 10 percent 
(10%) for materials (any items built into construction).  The Allowed 
Markup shall not apply to Contractor’s Fully Burdened Labor Rates, 
Contractor-owned or leased vehicles and equipment, Services 
performed under this Agreement by an Affiliate of the Contractor, and 
Services transferred to a Subcontractor that were to be performed by 
the Contractor under the Approved Maintenance Plan unless 
otherwise approved by ACTA.”    



Amendment 2 
Agreement C0885 

RailWorks Track Services LLC 
 
 

 
  

 
3. The definition of “Local Administrative and Office Support Costs” is hereby deleted 

in its entirety and replaced with the following:  
  

“‘Local Administrative and Office Support Costs’ means costs of 
items such as office supplies, cleaning supplies, office equipment, 
computers and accessories, office furniture, photography equipment 
and accessories, cell phone service and phone accessories, 
telephone and internet services, postal & courier service and 
supplies, ice/water for the office, soda & coffee (and related 
supplies), food (including catering) for meetings/training 
sessions/holidays, marketing materials, auto cleaning supplies, gifts 
for safety awards, tools (including but not limited to hand tools, 
motorized, electrical, test devices, cordless, or any other tools which 
would be necessary to perform the “Services” as described in Article 
6 of this agreement), and personal work boots. These costs shall be 
included in the Fully Burdened Labor Rates.” 

 
4. The last paragraph of Section 5.6.1 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 

with the following: 
 

 “Each such invoice shall be in reasonable detail, shall include such 
supporting documentation as reasonably required by ACTA, and 
shall be subject to ACTA’s audit rights as set forth in Section 13.3. 
Contractor shall attach to each such invoice signed timecards 
detailing the time each employee of Contractor spent performing 
Services under this Agreement and payroll registers for that time 
period. In the event that Contractor used subcontracting services 
during such period, Contractor shall also provide the information and 
documents required under Section 5.7 (including the invoice for 
subcontracting Services performed for the prior calendar month, 
which invoice shall be in the same form and contain the same 
information, as may be applicable, as required under this Section 
5.6.1).” 

 
5. Section 13.3 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
 "13.3 Audit Rights.  At any time during the term of this Agreement 

and for a period of not less than three (3) calendar years after the 
termination of this Agreement, ACTA has the right to inspect and 
audit Contractor’s statements, books and records with respect to 
Contractor’s performance of Services under this Agreement. 
Contractor agrees to accept the results of ACTA’s audit(s), including, 
but not limited to, when questioned or disputed costs are 
extrapolated or applied to the entire population or Contract Year, and 
to pay or reimburse ACTA for any amounts due under this 



Amendment 2 
Agreement C0885 

RailWorks Track Services LLC 
 
 

 
  

Agreement pursuant to such audit results.  ACTA acknowledges and 
agrees, however, that the rates set forth in the Approved 
Maintenance Plan are negotiated rates that are not subject to audit; 
provided, however, that ACTA shall have the right to audit whether 
or not the correct rate was applied in such instance, and/or the 
correct number of hours were applied to such rate, and whether 
wages meet or exceed the minimum prevailing wage rate 
requirement. ACTA has the right to enter, or cause its agent to enter, 
Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s place of business (or such other 
facilities where such books or records are stored pursuant to Section 
13.6) during normal business hours to perform such inspection and 
audit; provided, that ACTA shall give Contractor and Subcontractor 
reasonable prior notice of its desire to inspect such books and 
records at Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s place of business (or such 
other facilities where such books or records are stored). Contractor 
shall also cause similar audit provisions to be a part of any 
subcontract agreement into which Contractor shall enter into in 
connection with this Agreement.” 

 
6. Except as amended in this Second Amendment herein, all remaining terms and 

conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 
 
7. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning assigned 

thereto in the Agreement. 
 
8. This Second Amendment shall be effective upon the date of execution by ACTA’s 

Chief Executive Officer. 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 



Amendment 2 
Agreement C0885 

RailWorks Track Services LLC 
 
 

 
  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second 

Amendment to Agreement No. C0885 on the date next to their signatures. 
 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 

RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES LLC, 
an Indiana limited liability company 
    

 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________, 2024 
Dawn McIntosh, Long Beach City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
 Thomas Y. Oh, ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 


	Agenda
	Performance Report of 2023 Year End & January 2024
	Report of 2024 Bond Tender and Issuance
	Report of 2024 Emergency Preparedness Exercise
	Minutes of the December 14, 2023 Regular Governing Board Meeting 
	Item 1-Monthly Financial Reports as of December 31, 2023
	Item 1, Transmittal 1- Key Financial Activity December '23 vs. '22
	Item 1, Transmittal 2- Monthly Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2023

	Item 2-Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (FY 2025) Preliminary Budget Schedule
	Item 3-Revised Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Investment Policy 
	Item 3, Transmittal 1–Revised ACTA Investment Policy highlighting revisions
	Item 3, Transmittal 2–Revised ACTA Investment Policy

	Item 4-2024-2025 Renewal of ACTA Insurance Coverages
	Item 4, Transmittal 1–2024-2025 Insurance Program Schematic 
	Item 4, Transmittal 2–2024 Preliminary Premium Summary & Comparison to 2023 Insurance Policies

	Item 5-1st Amendment to Agreement C0906 with Dudek to add an additional 12 months for CEQA consulting services
	Item 5, Transmittal 1-1st Amendment to Dudek Agreement C0906 

	Item 6–2nd Amendment to RailWorks Agreement No. C0885 to extend term 5 years
	Item 6, Transmittal 1–2nd Amendment to RailWorks Agreement No. C0885

	Blank Page



